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8.1.10 Character Area lj: South Row

The Grade II listed South Row complex of flats and houses was designed by Eric
Lyons and built by Span Developments Ltd in 1963. The following is an extract from
the list description:

‘Span Developments Ltd. were England’s most important private developers in the
post-war period. Their best work is in the Blackheath area, and this group of houses
and flats is a prominent and richly modelled example that is amongst their strongest
compositions. The group makes a careful, well-landscaped but nevertheless powerful
contribution to a sensitive historic setting.’

The flat blocks form part of the very rich architectural legacy of built form which lines
the edge of the Heath. Its setting is particularly attractive with the tree lined Prince of
Wales Pond in its foreground and a fine mature (type) tree to its eastern corner. The
flats have an overwhelmingly strong horizontal emphasis with the expressed
reinforced concrete frame replacing the stucco rendered string courses of the late
Georgian houses which are so prominent in other views across the Heath. It is
because of this strong emphasis and its wider setting adjacent to The Paragon that
this development is such a landmark and a modern icon. The development has had its
critics but it is undoubtedly a bold and uncompromising addition to the Heath and as
such in the tradition of the Heath in embracing contemporary architecture.
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8.2 Character Area 2: Lewisham Hill, Blackheath Rise, Prince’s Rise and Morden

Hill

This character area comprises the redevelopment of the St John’s Hospital site
bounded by Blackheath Rise and Morden Hill. The former hospital site had a number
of important historic buildings including a 1938 Nurses Home by Bertram Carter of
some architectural merit and Pevsner described as ‘progressive for its time’.
Unfortunately the only building of historic merit that remains on the site is Btandon
House a building also mentioned by Pevsner. The surrounding housing development
was built in and misses the opportunity to front and enclose the Heath as is so
characteristic in other areas in this section.

Blackheath Rise climbs steadily and steeply up to the Heath and this tree lined
approach is characterised by handsome late brick Victorian villas. There is good
enclosure to Blackheath Rise with houses set in small front gardens at two and a half
storey with bays and gables creating a positive architectural rhythm as they step down
the hill. Views out to the Lewisham suburban fringe are focused on the spire of St
John, Lewisham Way.

Materials are brick with stucco dressings and natural slate roofs. The sash window is
particularly prevalent along Blackheath Rise and is used effectively in the double bays
which many of the houses possess. The house to the corner of Blackheath Rise and
Princes Rise turns to face up the hill and forms an attractive punctuation in the street
with its prominent eaves chimney stack on the skyline.

This character area is notable for the very pleasant approach to the Heath via
Blackheath Rise and the survival of Brandon House, a building that despite its setting
makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation
area.
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8.3 Character Area 3: Dartmouth Hill, north end of Dartmouth Row, Blackheath Hill

Dartmouth Hill divides this character area into two with the most northern part of
Dartmouth Row (Nos. 2-10 are of 1860 and Nos. 12 to 16, 1874) along with part of
Dartmouth Hill (1883) and Blackheath Hill (late 1880’s) comprising good quality mid to
late Victorian terraced housing on the very tight triangular site created by these three
roads. Within this group houses are 2% storey with dormers and relatively recent
mansard additions which disrupt the original scale of the terraces. The houses have
restrained detailing and are well considered and form a distinct group in contrast to
the grand scale of Dartmouth Row to the south.

This character area displays a very high degree of quality in its built form and survival
of original features and materials. There is some noticeable pressure for roof
extensions to the northern part of Dartmouth Row and these have in places
compromised the original scale of the houses.

A number of houses on Blackheath Hill are in a very poor state of repair with one
boarded up on the ground floor at time of survey (No.122). This has generally
diminished the appearance of the group which is an important entrance to the
conservation area and further diminished by heavy traffic.
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84 Character Area 4: Allison Close

This character area covers the historic site of the seventeenth century Green Man
public house, an important watering hole and staging post for coach traffic on the
edge of the Heath and the top of Blackheath Hill. The present buildings on the site
date from ci 970 when the Victorian villas which replaced the Green Man’s assembly
rooms were demolished.

The flat blocks to Blackheath Hill are architecturally uninspiring but their building line
and scale maintain the enclosure to this secondary open space to the Heath (West
Grove in Greenwich) and heighten the sense of a gateway to the Heath at this point.

The terrace of townhouses at the back of the site fronting onto Dartmouth Hill are
more accomplished and their repetition of large oriel bays, appropriate restrained use
of brick and tender pick up on some of the historic design cues of the much older
southern side of Dartmouth Hill which sees double canted oriel bays to two fine
Georgian houses (nos. 2022) of the late eighteenth century (ci 776). The scale of the
street section at three storeys either side is very comfortable and views both east and
west along this street are open to panoramas of equal import and depth.
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8.5 Character Area 5: Dartmouth Row & Dartmouth Grove

This wide street runs north-south and is bisected by Dartmouth Hill where the street
section becomes narrower to the north. It comprises an exceptional group of listed
buildings and unlisted historic buildings. All frontage buildings within this character
area make a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation
area.

Initially these houses would have enjoyed wide semi rural prospects; the Heath and
Kent countryside to the east and the distant views of the capital to the west.
Subsequent development has isolated these early houses from the Heath but
emphasised their role as an attractive varied row of houses spanning over 300 years
of development.

Houses range from the 1690’s but display mostly early-mid Georgian characteristics
through to domestic revival and Arts and Crafts. The former are rows of very large
individual houses and the latter are large detached houses. Houses front relatively
narrow, deep plots.

The building line varies to the west side with bays and paired houses projecting
forward providing some incident and variation in the street scene. The east is more
regimented but is dynamically ‘book ended’ by the Church of Ascension to the south.
The church projects right up to the pavement line and punctuates the street scene,
successfully making a transition in the scale of the street with its modest pediment
and small cupola. It was originally built in 1699, then rebuilt to the present street line in
1750. This building was then demolished in 1834 but this time, the apsidal eastern
end was incorporated and the building finally restored in 19502. Houses on this side
are three storey or two storey with attics; dormers and mansards have been added
with varying degrees of success.

Some particularly fine early eighteenth century brickwork can be seen to the houses
and fragment survivals of boundary walls. These early materials make a significant
contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation area.

2
Courtesy of Neil Rhind
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8.6 Character Area 6: Granville Park, Oakcroft Road, St Austell Road, Walerand

Road and The Knoll

The wide formally laid out streets with generous pavements in this character area run
down across the contours of Lewisham Hill to varying degrees; from the grand gentle
sweep of Granville Park to the relative steepness of Lewisham Hill.

Buildings almost without exception date from the mid to late Victorian through to the
Edwardian period and found on a grand scale (2% - 3 storey). Houses are grouped in
pairs (Granville Park 1858-59 by Henry William Spratt, Eliot Hill (Victorian section -

1864 and the Edwardian houses - 1911) and St Austell Road ci 910-11, detached
(Oakcroft Road 1902-08 some later) and in very limited numbers; in terraces
(Walerand Road ci 859 south side and 1870 north side though much was destroyed
through bomb damage). However most houses are tightly built to their plot width and
are articulated as individual houses through the use of gables or bays rather than
being set in generous grounds to distinguish them. In this respect, streets often read
as cohesive groups; Granville Park is a good example of this.

Granville Park is a set piece in townscape terms with very large three storey paired
villas which vary the treatment of entrances but continue a rhythm of two storey
projecting bays and sweeping rooflines. The shared central spine wall chimneystacks
with up to 16 chimney pots are a distinctive feature of this terrace and form important
elements of the roofscape.

Rigid building lines with houses set back off the street with boundary walls formalises
the townscape of this character area and also contributes to tying the groups of
houses together along streets. The collective character of these houses is as
important as the individual design of units to the overall character and appearance of
this part of the conservation area. Of particular note are the corner bays to houses
which are a particular characteristic of this part of the conservation area.

Boundary walls generally define a key part of the character of the street. Granville
park’s important boundary walls are under particular pressure given the conversion of
these large houses to flats, their relatively large front gardens and the limited car
parking on roadside.

There has been some unfortunate infill to this part of the conservation area; 4-1 Oa
Walerand Road and 4-6a Eliot Park are poorly detailed, inappropriately scaled and
break the important building line of the street and the flats to the corner of Lewisham
Hill and Walerand Road create a poor frontage and are not of sufficient quality to be
considered as making a positive contribution to the conservation area. Despite these,
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the townscape quality of the toads is high and the grouping of buildings and their
setting in mature gardens (some with good quality mature trees) give parts of this area
a high degree of quality and status.
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8.7 Character Area 7: Heath Lane

The Lane is an early crossing point to the railway but retains a semi rural character
with mature trees forming the backdrop to and framing houses set in generous plots.
The character area also includes the top of the lane where it meets Eliot Vale, which
is also characterised by mature trees and large houses set in generous gardens.
There is a far more suburban! semi-rural character to this small part of the
conservation area with a genuine feeling of quiet and calm away from the busy roads
of the Village and the dramatic open spaces of the Heath.

The houses in this character area date from the early, mid and late nineteenth century
and turn of the century and take on a much more suburban form with listed villas; Eliot
Vale Lodge and House both 1805 in distinctive yellow London stock brick and large
Arts and Crafts influenced houses with Domestic Revival motifs and detailing. A
‘cottage style’ (albeit on a grander scale) can best describe the buildings in this small
but important character area, best illustrated by No.1 Heath Lane (Cl 895- 1900) and
No.6, The Cottage (Cl 877), Heath Lane). Both these houses are of considerable
quality and make very positive contributions to the character and appearance of this
part of the conservation area despite their unlisted status.

Buildings are mostly two storey, however this is seen on a grand scale in much of the
Domestic Revival’ influenced examples (No.2 Heath Lane with its prominent sham

timber framed gable is a good example of this. Building lines are consistent to Eliot
Vale and set relatively well back from the road. Heath Lane has a mote informal
building line and buildings which address the slope rather than the road contributing to
its informal semi-rural character.

Chimneys form a particularly notable part of the character of the area with the huge
red brick stacks of No.2 Heath Lane and the decorated terracofta ‘neo-Jacobean’
chimney pots of The Cottage (No.6) Heath Lane) and the slender brick eaves stacks
of the houses to the north side of Eliot Vale all forming important parts of the
roofscape and the subject of local views across and up the slopes.

This area is notable for its eclectic mix of architectural styles and periods; from the
Pagoda (1763 by William Chambers with extensions of 1840 to the west end and to
the east cornet and north elevation in 1 857) a garden Pavilion (from the lost
Montague House which stood neat Rangers House) through the nineteenth century
villas and grand houses of the Edwardian period to various modern houses from the

1960’s and 70’s. These are set low into their wooded sites and provide tantalising
glimpses of large areas of glazing and private courtyards. A key element of all the built

Courtesy of Neil Rhind.
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form in this character area is its heavily treed setting forming glimpsed views of
chimneys, gables and framing and enclosing lanes and roads alike.
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8.8 Character Area 8: Railway Environs

This part of the conservation area has derived its character from the impact of the
railway on the landscape and resulting land parcels and ensuing development
patterns. It includes reasonable groups of 1950’s flat blocks (Baizdon Road) Iwo
schools and modern housing (Hurren Close and St Josephs Vale) lining the railway,
Hurren Close noticeably breaking the grain of development being set diagonal to the
railway line.

The remaining area is a diverse mix of building types, uses, scale and building line.
Groups are mixed. Flat blocks vary their set back to provide some interest and
movement in the streets. They range from two storey to the cohesive group of flats to
Baizdon Road which vary from two to five storey but use the change in levels at this
point to set the larger blocks down into the wooded slopes.

This area contains some of the most notable pieces of open space (both private and
public or semi public) in the conservation area other than the Heath itself. These vary
in quality but include the playing fields to the RC Primary School.

The general quality of this character area is of an indifferent to poor quality in terms of
townscape and quality of building design. The flat blocks on Baizdon Road are well
articulated and carefully placed so as to reduce their impact and provide individual
amenity, although the loss of original windows has somewhat diminished their
architectural integrity.

This sub area has relatively few historic buildings of merit and has the feel of an area
that was ‘left over’ from the truncation of the Heath from Belmont Hill and environs.
Subsequent land use decisions and disjointed development of the difficult parcels of
land (a good example being development south of Baizdon Road) has resulted in a
disparate and illegible section of the conservation area not helped by the railway line
and the segregated mix of residential and sensitive non-residential uses. These
parcels of development have little to do with the established character of the
conservation area in terms of their architectural references, spatial distribution, density
and massing.
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8.9 Character Area 9: The Village

The Village comprises two converging streets of varying section which once merged
go on to cross the railway and curve up the south side of the valley. The topography
of this character area and tight urban grain make this a memorable part of the
conservation area with a strong sense of place.

In contrast to the main thoroughfares, a network of mews, tight streets and alleyways
interconnect Tranquil Vale, Royal Parade and Montpelier Vale and are unique to the
Blackheath Conservation area. They have an authenticity and simplicity and intimate
human scale which is particularly pleasing and sensitive to change.

The majority of built form dates from a period c.1790 to 1880. This has created a
degree of consistency of architectural style, particularly within the shop terraces of the
1 840s which were usually developed in groups rather than on an individual piecemeal
basis. However, terraces do vary in detailed execution and it is this subtle variation in
the use of string courses, window emphasis, parapet cornices and console brackets
between shopfronts which emphasises and reflects the various periods of construction
and adds to the strong cohesive character of the Village as a whole.

The scale of building varies dramatically from the apparent single storey of the railway
station to the Village (actually a two storey building set at track level) to the four
storeys of Royal Parade and Montpelier Vale. It is this variation in scale, which
contributes to the significant visual interest of the townscape. The building line is
consistent to streets but is seen to carefully enclose Montpelier Vale with a
comfortable consistent street section which is then contrasted with Tranquil Vale
which widens on rising up the hill, out towards the Heath breaking back at the Crown
Hotel, which opens its façade towards the Heath and creates an informal square to
the side of the thoroughfare.

The curve in the road at the valley floor means that all views are closed by buildings at
this point. This adds to the strong urban feel to the Village which contrasts so
dramatically with the openness of the Heath a short distance away.

The survival in numbers of good quality traditional shopfronts and replica shopfronts
(see shopfronts survey) contributes to the teal sense of an historic village. This is
combined with the relatively high number of consistently well-detailed groups of late
eighteenth century and nineteenth century buildings retaining much of their features.

The gateway qualities of the townscape to this part of the conservation area also
extend to the southern approach to the Village which is framed by the well detailed,
articulated and appropriately scaled Selwyn Court and row of shops and late
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nineteenth century buildings lining the London Borough of Greenwich boundary.

These culminate in a very thoughtfully detailed singte storey building which turns the
corner and forms a very prominent feature in the townscape.

This character area has surprisingly few listed buildings but almost all buildings make
a positive contribution towards the character and appearance of the conservation
area. Buildings are generally in good repair and have a high degree of historic
detailing remaining.
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8.9.1 Character Area 9a: Collins Street and South Vale Road

This sub area of the Village is closely related to the rapid increase in popularity of

Blackheath as a commuter satellite settlement to nineteenth century London. The

roads are laid out parallel to the railway with Collins Street (laid out in 1869) fronting

onto what was formerly goods yards and sidings, now Blackheath Station car park

and Southvale Road (1870-71) further up the hill.

The houses are modest two storey terraced houses some with bays; brick with natural

slate roofs and some stucco dressings; keystones and door surrounds (South Vale

Road) and contrasting coloured brick and dentil eaves courses (Collins Street).

The present relationship of Collins Street to the station car park is uncomfortable with

a high timber boarded fence between the latter and the opposite edge of the narrow

Collins Street.

The roofscape of Collins Street and the parallel terraces above is a strong defining

image to the train traveller to Blackheath, this being one of the first views of the

Village on looking north from the train track.
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8.9.2 Character Area 9b: Blackheath Grove and Wemyss Road

These two parallel roads form the eastern section of the Village character area and
are closely related to Blackheath’s increasing popularity as a place to live. These
houses are on a grander scale to those of Collins Street and South Vale Road.
Terraces are three storey and raised with large area basements (Wemyss Road) and
Blackheath Grove.

A well designed addition to the road at the west end is four storeys but well handled

and understated with good materials. This new building turns the corner well.

Wemyss road is notable for the presence of cast iron railings (some reproduction) to
both north and south sides. These railings largely enclose the lower basement areas
and make a very positive contribution towards the street scene.

A strongly defined closed view looking along the western end section of Wemyss
Street can be had of the spire of All Saints Church, marred only by the street lighting
to Montpelier Vale.
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8.10 Character Area 10: Lee Terrace and The Glebe

This character area takes the form of the long linear Lee Terrace and the sloping
curved crescent forming The Glebe. Both these areas are characterised by mature
trees, which line much of the roads. Groups of villas of varying architectural detail and
quality set behind hedges and mature trees characterises much of Lee Terrace. The
houses are on a grand scale and set into complementary groups. Houses make a
positive contribution both individually through proportion, ornamentation and use of
distinctive materials and as complete architectural compositions. This is particularly
true of Nos. 22-32 (1847) and Nos. 47-61 Lee Terrace (1833- 34).

A strong defining part of this road is the boundary walls. These brick walls, of varying
height, and the trees and hedges are an important part of the quality of this road. The
walled front gardens provide an important setting to these large houses. As such their
retention is essential in maintaining the strongly defined public and private spaces to
both Lee Terrace and The Glebe.

The Glebe comprises a small group of high quality Italianate and Gothic villas of
ci 849-50 built around a horse shoe shaped street, open at both ends. Some of the
villas survive intact and are set in their large generous treed plots although the historic
set piece is somewhat diminished by later infill building. Scale and building lines are
however consistent in this small group and this forms an important part of the
character of this road.

Houses are predominantly two storey but on a grand scale and often utilize the
roofspace for additional accommodation. This is best executed in Nos. 47-61 Lee
Terrace (present on the Tithe map of 1839) with the half lunettes to each pair lighting
the additional storey. Building lines in groups are important throughout the character
area and are consistent in groups; for example 22-32 and Nos. 47-61 which are set
forward and dominate the streetscene with their imposing scale and use of the
characteristic shared pediment.

The shared pediment is seen in various guises in this sub area but is characteristic of
many of the villa groups in and around the Blackheath Conservation Area. It is a
powerful and dynamic architectural device which effectively gives two houses the
perceived grandeur and status of one large villa. This effect would have been a very
attractive attribute to the original occupiers of these houses.

The quality of built form and townscape is varied in this character area but is
complemented by the presence of mature trees throughout to front and back gardens.
This contributes to what has been referred to as an Arcadian quality to this part of the
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conservation area.4 In addition, the eye is led along the road by the extended
boundary walls, which perhaps more than in any other character area makes a
considerable contribution to the character and appearance of this part of the
conservation area.

4
A Character Assessment of 52 to 74 Belmont Hill within the Blackheath Conservation Area (November 2004) A report by

David Warren on behalf of Belmont Hill Conservation Group (BHCG)
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8.11 Character Area 11. Belmont Hill and Belmont Grove

This character area comprises the very large individual mid-Victorian villas (for
example the Cedars; remodelling of 1855) set well back on the north side of Belmont
Hill and the restrained suburban, loosely Arts and crafts, early twentieth century
houses to the south side of the road. It also takes in Belmont Grove to the edge of the
conservation area.

This area is characterised by large houses set in generous plots. There ate good
sized gardens to the front and long gardens to the rear with houses set towards the
front of plots and tight to side boundaries. In the case of the houses to the south side
of Belmont Hill, the gardens contain some very high quality specimen trees (formerly
part of the extensive grounds of the Cedars on the north side). The presence of
mature street trees adds to this sylvan suburban quality.

There is a wide variation of materials in this character area due to the mix of
nineteenth century villas and semi detached houses and the group of detached Arts
and Crafts influenced houses to the south of Belmont Hill. These include; stock bricks,
red brick, render, painted tender, natural slate and clay tiles.

Boundary walls are important in defining the street scene to this sub area and large
trees and shrubs are often seen set behind these forming a softened edge to the
townscape with buildings seen beyond.

The gradually revealed views of St Margaret’s Church and spire on travelling north up
Belmont Hill are very rewarding. Due to extensive tree cover to front gardens these
views are seasonal. In the summer months the church is happened upon much closer
to the apex of the hill as the road bends to the north and opens to Brandram Road,
whereas in the winter the church and spire are much mote apparent from further west
along Belmont Hill.
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812 Character Area 12: St Margaret’s Church and churchyard opposite and Church

Terrace

St Margaret’s church (1839-41), with its ornate, picturesque west tower set back but
running parallel with the road acts as a transition between subareas 10 and 11.. It also
presents, with Church Terrace, a high quality set piece of considerable townscape
value and integrity.

At the top of this character area, north of Belmont Hill, the ruins of the original
medieval church can be seen.

Church Terrace runs parallel with Lee Terrace I Belmont Hill. The houses are on a
grand scale and paired to form a symmetrical composition. The stuccoed fronts rise
up to the very deep bracketed eaves of the natural slate roofs with, unusually, the
third floor window cutting the line of the eaves although the gutter continues across in
front of the window. The carefully executed Venetian windows to inset arched bays
are particularly striking and reflect the overall quality and refinement of the group.
What is particularly ingenious is the houses that back onto the churchyard have been
provided with a formal façade so that the houses to the north side of Church Terrace
effectively have two main facades: one to the street and one to the Church and
churchyard. This has the effect from Lee Terrace of placing the church in what
appears to be one side of a square with back façade of the houses forming the
appropriate grand backdrop to this church.

Of particular note are the views of the church from Church Terrace between the
paired villas. These have been marred in places by the addition of external stairs,
garages and some extensions but their essential incidental qualities have been
retained).

This entire character area is a set piece of place-making and high quality historic
townscape. It is very sensitive to change and in development control terms it must be
considered holistically as a whole as well as individually on a case by case basis.
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8.13 Character Area 13: Quentin Road, Belmont Park, Dacre Park, Eton Grove,

Kingswood Place, St Margaret’s Passage, Brandram Road and Glenton Road

Land falls away from Lee Terrace and Belmont Hill towards Lee High Road and in this
respect this character area has a very limited (if any) relationship with Blackheath.
Streets are laid out in speculative parcels of different periods and as such tend to
crash into one another terminating in dead ends (Eton Grove and Dacre Place) and
turning corners at abrupt right angles (Quentin Terrace).

Nonetheless, the area is characterised by very good quality early, mid and late
Victorian terraces, occasionally on a grand scale (for example Quentin Road — c.1880
and in set piece groups of high townscape value; for example Glenton Road.

Houses range from two to three storeys with semi-basements, often utilizing the
roofspace for accommodation. Building lines are consistent in groups producing a
very strong sense of enclosure, particularly in the regular terraces of houses. The
terrace is the dominant building form. These are often well articulated and detailed.
The articulation and the architectural detail to window surrounds, door cases,
stringcourses, cornices and chimneys contribute to the group character of the
terraces. Houses and flats should be viewed very much as part of collective groups,
often having a very well defined character within a given street. The Grade II listed
group in Dacre Park, for example, is very different in materials and execution to others
in the same road.

Materials vary within groups but are generally a mix of yellow stock brick and natural
slate or stucco and natural slate. Stucco tends to be employed in the earlier terraces
in this sub area. There are degrees of embellishment to windows and doors ranging
from simple variations in brick colour; Quentin Road to bottle balustrading to bays and
paired and triple windows with moulded architraves; southern end of Brandram Road.

This sub area has a very urban feel. Front gardens are small but there is a good
survival of historic boundary wall treatments, including railings, steps and front paths.

There is a consistent quality to the buildings of this sub area. Most are very well
maintained and there is a very high proportion of traditional single glazed windows,
original doors, natural state roofs and traditional boundary treatments — railings and
low rendered walls or brick walls to match the host building.
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Areas of distinct character

8.14 Character Area 14: Lock Chase

This small development has a unique character in terms of the conservation area and
is a set piece of single-phase development which warrants separate study as a
character area. It comprises a simple upside down L’ shape layout with a widening to
the stem to form a green.

The buildings date from 1959 and comprise a mix of attractive houses and flats laid
out in short blocks around a green to appear as semi—detached houses. The breaking
up of the blocks with semi detached houses of a similar design at the edges of the
development and on a principle corner add to the sense of a suburban street of
houses rather than flats.

There is a consistent two-storey scale and building line which help define and
comfortably enclose the open grassed space to the centre of the development.
Rooflines are well articulated with gables and chimneys.

The trees to this sub-area make a very positive contribution to the quality of this well-
defined space, giving the feel of a village green. In this respect, it shares some
similarities with the Grade II listed Lammas Green complex in Sydenham (also in the
London Borough of Lewisham).

The quality of the blocks has been let down in places by the replacement of steel
framed criftall windows with Upvc examples. These are of a much wider section and
somewhat compromise the attractive finer Arts and Crafts style detailing of the overall
composition. The small hexagonal oculus windows to some of the gables have
particularly suffered from this type of alteration.
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Areas of distinct character

8.15 Character Area 15: Lee Park and Lee Road

Lee Park and Lee Road are both long, gently sloping, tree-lined roads which link
Blackheath Village with Lee High Road. The centre of Lee Road forms the boundary
between the London Boroughs of Lewisham and Greenwich. The eastern Greenwich
side is included in the Blackheath Park conservation area. In addition, most of the
houses on the east side (excluding Nos. 59-67 odd) are grade II listed.

Lee Road is lined with semi-detached and detached Victorian villas (with some later
replacements to the west side) dating from the early to mid nineteenth century. They
are set relatively close together and well back from the road and enjoy garden settings
in deep plots. Those to the Lewisham side have been truncated and developed with
later housing. Unlike the east Greenwich side, the character of the road radically
changes after No. 38 with modern houses of a much higher density and no particular
architectural or historic merit.

Nos. 119-143 Lee Park (mid nineteenth century) is an exceptional group arranged in a
crescent and contemporaneous with the houses of Lee Road. This small group to Lee
Park shares many of the common characteristics of the wider area (shared with
Greenwich) The houses are made all the better for their mature tree setting.

Down to the southern boundary of the conservation area (Presently to the south of
No.32a) and arguably to No.38 the character of the Lewisham side is inextricably
linked to the Greenwich side. Houses to both sides of the road share a common
character and should be read as one character area despite the administrative
boundary issues.

Houses are 2% storey, with characteristic shared pediments and half lunettes to the
attic storey. They are on the grand villa scale and are set back and framed by tree-
lined boundaries. There are exceptions to this and breaks in the road include modern
interventions such as the ‘Span’ housing to the south of Manor Way and the large
Gothic estate cottage at No.36 which is rather at odds with its classical neighbours but
nonetheless contributes at present to the setting of the conservation area.

The boundary treatments are an important part of this character area and the
presence of a Grade II listed ‘K2’ telephone kiosk also adds to the high quality
suburban feel of this part of the conservation area.

The east (Greenwich) side of Lee Road is of higher quality and is more cohesive and
consistent than the west (Lewisham) side. This is reflected in the statutory listings on
the east side. However, the character area taken as a whole and straddling the border
as it does, has an sylvan suburban quality complemented by the deep tree lined plots
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Areas of distinct character

3.16 Character Area 16: Ryculif Square

The area comprises formal blocks of flats described by Pevsner as ‘discreetly genteel’
(p 424. 1983 Buildings of England London 2:South). They are laid out in a series open
and semi-open squares. The square has a limited visual relationship with the Heath
and is divided by the boundary with the London Borough of Greenwich.

The flat blocks were designed by Sit Albert Richardson and were completed in 1954
and are three storey with very low pitch concrete tile roofs and deep eaves. They are
the most restrained of Neo-Georgian style, stripped of almost all architectural
embellishment save for a stringcourse between first and second floor. The facades
and massing of the blocks are broken up by projecting porches and chimneys defining
regular two window bays. The style is intended to reflect the Georgian terraces seen
fronting the Heath.

The design of these blocks are interesting for the spatial qualities of the layout of the
blocks rather than individual architectural distinction. The attention to hard and soft
landscaping and in particular the presence of mature trees which line some of the
roads create a ‘boulevard’ effect which breaks up what are in some cases large
spaces.
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Areas of distinct character

8.17 Character Area 17: Merchant Taylors Almshouses

The group of almshouses by T. Bulcock Burbidge (1826) largely present an
anonymous front to their public elevations on Brandram Road (seen as a long high
brick wall) and Lee High Road. The exception to this is the Grade I listed Boone’s
Chapel (c1683) which makes such an unexpected and dramatic impact on this section
of Lee High Road.

The houses are arranged in a palatial composition of three terraces, grouped to the
west, north and east sides of the site in an upside down Ushape. The houses are built
of pale stock brick in two storeys and all with iron casement windows, slate roofs and
tall chimneys. The northern terrace faces the garden and has a pedimented three bay
treatment to the centre (with cupola) and end of the block.

The combination of boundary treatments including railings to a low brick wall with
stone capping and the high brick wall to the east side of Brandram Road form an
important part of the character of this part of the conservation area. In addition, the
trees lining Lee High Road within the grounds of the almshouses also provide both an
attractive setting and some screening from the busy road.

4. The exceptionally high architectural and historic quality of this group is reflected in
the complex being listed grade II and Boone’s Chapel being listed Grade I. As such
the setting of these buildings as well as their conservation area status will form an
important part of considering any proposals for change.

The eighteenth century brickwork, projecting stone quoins and dentilted cornice and
pediment to the elevations of Boone’s Chapel provide an interesting juxtaposition with
buildings on Lee High Road which is part of the positive character of this site.

The entrance to the almshouses on Brandram Road is a very pleasant symmetrical
composition which, similar to Boone’s Chapel, is unexpected but very welcome, It
forms a very positive part of the street scene made all the more unusual by the use of
a distinctive greyish-yellow brick. The addition of a Victorian posting box adjacent to
the entrance is a very positive element in the street scene.
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9 Architectural character

The extensive survival of high quality historic architecture in Blackheath is a rewarding
part of the quality of the conservation area. Early suburbs and individual houses of the
eighteenth and nineteenth century are interspersed with later development, albeit
some of varying quality. However, the delight is generally in the survival of important
townscape defining groups which have retained their architectural integrity and
settings.

9.1 Listed buildings

There ate a considerable number of very high quality groups of houses as well as
individual houses and buildings which ate listed on the statutory list of buildings of
special architectural or historic interest (see Designation Map, Appendix 1).

The Designations Map illustrates their distribution across the conservation area. Much
of the built form enclosing the Heath is listed as well as early terracing to the Village.
These divide reasonably logically into two groups: north and south of the railway.

9.1.1 Listed buildings north of the railway

Listed buildings in this area generally reflect the earlier development of Blackheath,
with many of the buildings dating from the eighteenth century (with some remodelled
seventeenth century houses). There are notable exceptions, for example All Saints
Church of 1857-67 by Benjamin Ferrey, remarkable more for it’s setting on the Heath
rather than its architectural accomplishments. And the Span housing development
South Row (1959-61).

The typical London Georgian townhouse is a key building type in Blackheath built of
brown-red bricks, timber framed vertical sliding sash windows (usually six over six
panes), parapets, good decorative doorcases and hidden or mansard roofs. The latter
can be quite dominant and in some ways overpowering when seen in paired houses
(Eliot Place). In the Village these houses have been converted to shops at the ground
floor with varying degrees of success. Many have been remodelled and altered to
disguise their early date. A walk around the back of Tranquil Vale however, reveals a
complexity of plan and early forms of extension and alteration. The roofscape to this
part of this village makes a very interesting and valuable contribution to the character
and appearance of the conservation area.

The Georgian villa is also present, seen at its best on Eliot Vale where two such villas
sit adjacent to each other and quietly address the street with their subtle proportions
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and restrained classical idiom. These ate very attractive houses which define the
streetscene helped by their generous tree lined garden settings.

Of individual houses, Spencer House ci 690 (Grade 11*) and Dartmouth House (1750),
both in Dartmouth Row are important survivals on a very grand scale and also provide
good essays in the evolution of the Georgian townhouse.

The Victorian townhouse is represented (in listed buildings) in Aberdeen Terrace
ci 855-60; three pairs of houses on a vast scale and more exuberant than their
Georgian equivalents.

9.1.2 Listed Building south of the railway

Listed buildings south of the railway date, with two exceptions (Boone’s Chapel, and
remains of the old church of St Margaret), from the Victorian period. They are either
churches, almshouses (Merchant Taylor’s), large detached villas or detached, semi
detached or terraced villas. The sub groups within this broad category are diverse and
vary in quality. However, they have shared characteristics which make them a
cohesive group in contrast to the diversity found on the north side of the railway.

The listed villas often have shared pediments, which although also seen on Shooters
Hill Road on the edge of the Heath, are prevalent in this part of the conservation area.
They are invariably stucco fronted with low pitch natural Welsh slate roofs and deep
eaves, often bracketed. They make good use of the roof space and this is
accentuated by windows, half lunettes and sashes paired in the centre of the
pediments. The entrance is raised and also often paired symmetrically, the ‘piano
nobile’, or main floor, is clearly defined by a decorative hood mould or architrave to
the windows.

A shared characteristic between listed buildings across the conservation area is the
importance of the buildings as groups as well as individually. This is perhaps more
evident south of the railway where listed groups are far more cohesive and were built
and intended to be seen as compositions in their own right. Perhaps the best
examples of this are the shallow crescent formed by Nos. 119-143 Lee Park an
ensemble which varies the architectural handling of the individual buildings to create a
hierarchy within the crescent with the grandest buildings to the centre stepping out to
the edges with subtle changes to the window details and door surrounds. Church
Terrace (ci 840-50) also shows superior handling of a group of large villas where the
formal façades fronting the street as well as the church form a distinguished group
which gives the feel of a formal square.

Particular mention should be made to the Merchant Taylor’s Almshouses, a fine
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group of late nineteenth century almshouses built in 1825 with the quadrangle finally
completed in 1878. The complex also contains the survival of an earlier chapel,
Boone’s Chapel of ci 683, which related to an earlier group of almshouses, now
demolished. The chapel is a grade I listed building and attributed to Sir Christopher
Wren, however, subsequent study has identified his contemporary Robert Hooke as
the more likely designer.5 This ensembte is a well considered group of houses which
have the luxury of a large enclosed private garden running down to Lee High Road.
The garden and almshouses also form a valuable setting for Boone’s Chapel which is
set on the roadside. This is a distinctive group and due to the subsequent late
commercial development of Lee High Road is an interesting feature ‘happened upon’
whilst travelling along the Lee High Road.

9.2 Significant groups of unlisted buildings

The Designations Map identifies the buildings that are considered to make a positive
contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation area. There are a
considerable number which are not locally listed. The following is a list of significant
groups of buildings within the conservation area, but is not exhaustive.

• Quentin Road: A fine late nineteenth century terrace (ci 880) on a large scale,
prominent bays and decorated door cases form a pleasing rhythm and significantly
contribute to the townscape.

• Collins Street and Southvale Road: Good late Victorian stock terraces (1869 and
1870-71 respectively) in good condition with a good survival of original features.

• All buildings comprising the Blackheath Village (see character area 9). In particular,
excellent groups of houses and other buildings that form part of Brigade Mews,
Brigade Street and Tranquil Passage are an untouched group of great townscape
value which is very different to anything else in the conservation area.

• Blackheath Vale: Simple late Victorian terraces (1875) built by local builder Henry
Joyce6, tucked down into the Heath in a former quarry, good detailing and survival of
original features.

• The Orchard (1893/94), Orchard Drive and 10-15 (consecutive) (1893-94), 17-18
Eliot Vale (1896-98): Good groups, within roads of large well detailed Arts and Crafts
influenced houses. High degree of survival of original features.

Supporting documentation for a successful planning application for the restoration of Boone’s
Chapel undertaken by Research Design Architecture Ltd (Feb 2005).
6 Courtesy of Neil Rhind.
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• Granville Park (commenced 1853, completed by 1860): Many of the houses were
designed by Henry William Spratt (1829-1910). A superb set piece of very high
townscape quality with individual houses of merit forming a very cohesive group
emphasised by the views of the sweep of the road down the hill towards Lewisham.

• North end of Dartmouth Row, Dartmouth Hill and Blackheath Hill: Tight triangular site
of terraced mid and late Victonan housing of good quality. Variation between the three
terraces in such close proximity provides teal interest and strong character and a
good survival of original features has maintained the quality of these groups.

9.3 Historic shops

There are a significant number of historic and traditionally designed shopfronts in
Blackheath Village (see Shopfront Survey). The variation in materials is particularly
striking and ranges from timber to cast and wrought iron, bronze and falence tiles.
Particularly important survivals of early shops in the Village include the mosaic
thresholds to the shops advertising early uses.

The date range is also broad with good examples from the nineteenth and twentieth
centuries. The historic and traditional shopfronts make a very significant positive
contribution to the character of the Village. For most visitors they are part of the
memorable distinct village atmosphere and quality of experience as welt as being
important historic records in their own right.

Historic and traditional shopfronts are particularly sensitive to minor changes
particularly in relation to advertisements; lettering and material finishes and even in
some cases colour changes. Many shopfronts display an attention to detail and quality
of material finish which make both individual shopfronts and the relatively large
grouping stand out for their consistent high quality.

9.4 Modern buildings

The conservation area has a positive history of the patronage and embracing of
modern buildings perhaps best exemplified by South Row (1959-61) by Eric Lyons.
This grade II listed building forms part of the important enclosure to the Heath and
takes its place beside eighteenth century houses of equal grade: Paragon House
(1791) to the east and Colonade House (1806) to the west.

In addition to this, there are a number of good groups of modern houses
and some individual one-off houses of note. The following list is representative,
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although not exhaustive:

• North Several: Good group of houses by Royston Summers (1969). Three storeys of
glass walling with a strong vertical emphasis due to the close setting of mullions to the
facades.

• 14-16 Baizdon Road by Stephen Gardiner (ci 970’s): Individual houses set low into
the hillside and around internal courtyards.

• 3 Dartmouth Grove (c1970-75): Set between terraces in the garden. Entrance in wall
reads as garden wall. The house is kept low and opens onto a private courtyard. The
architect has taken considerable care to respect the historic setting and the house
almost loses itself in the townscape.

• 8 Duke Humphrey Road: New house (ci 980 & 2005). Uncompromisingly modern
house in extremely prominent position overlooking the Heath. Simple execution, good
detailing and finishes and acts as a foil to the traditional buildings around it. Let down
by the retention of an earlier garage on the site which is at odds with the rest of the
design.

• The Courtyard, Paragon Place: Two contemporary houses maximise a tight urban site
to the rear of Montpelier Row and make a positive contribution to the quality of
modern design seen in the Blackheath Conservation Area (let down by the mock
timber horizontal detailing of the garage entrance).
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JO Materials and details

10.1 Windows

The ubiquitous Georgian terrace and townhouse of London was the choice of the
mass speculative builder of the cities. Its classical proportions, uniform character and
shared component pattern book styling meant terraces could be put up quickly and
efficiently. The Victorian period of suburb building utilized a style of architecture
dictated very much by the wealthier classes of the day who saw the classical idiom as
reflecting much of their ideals and aspirations of the time. The emergence of the villa
in its various forms and guises was the result. Both these styles share a common
characteristic which ties together houses across the conservation area and indeed
across much of London and that is the timber framed vertical sliding sash window.

The sash window is seen in many varying forms and configurations of glazing bar, but
is invariably single glazed, recessed back from the façade with the sash box built into
the wall and in almost all cases painted white. This window type is crucial to
understanding the principles of the classical language and maintaining a hierarchy
and sense of proportion to buildings. Even relatively minor alterations to windows,
particularly in a terrace or pair of houses can be very disruptive to the character of
both the individual building and the terrace/pair as a whole.

Other window types are to be found in the conservation area and they usually mark
the transition from the Victorian to Edwardian townhouse and villa. Casement
windows are often interspersed with sashes in early Edwardian properties with upper
storeys and attic rooms having casements rather than sashes seen on the lower,
principal floors. In addition, the Arts and Crafts movement encouraged the move back
towards the use of what were considered ‘traditional forms’ of the cottage and an
honesty in materials. This sees the presence of leaded lights, cast iron casements
and stained glass. The latter can be very attractive when seen in traditional front
doors and porches.

10.2 Doors

Timber panelled doors in a large number of configurations are seen in traditional
buildings throughout the conservation area. Georgian doors usually have solid raised
and fielded panels with a fanlight above. The late nineteenth century saw a trend in
upper panels being replaced with glass, which was often patterned and coloured or
had leaded decorative stained glass lights. This developed with elaborate detailing
and mote decorative motifs being employed onto the front door such as carved
panels, scrolls and the use of brass or cast iron door furniture (depending on the
status of the building).
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The conservation area has a number of very high quality doors, particularly relating to
historic door surrounds; architraves, bracketed hoods, pilasters and pediments.
Where these are carefully considered alterations, have been restored or reinstated
they make very positive contributions to the character and appearance of the
conservation area. In addition, the conservation area has some fine examples of early
porches, canopies and verandas (Granville Park has some excellent examples).
Where these survive they make a very positive contribution to the character of that
particular environment.

Doors are painted various colours. Colours which relate well to the overall
architectural finish of the building or terrace make the most successful contribution to
the character of the conservation area. They are often the most distinctive element of
the façade and they should not compete with other colours or architectural detailing
on the building.

10.3 Paths

Front paths do not survive in large numbers. Where they are found they vary from
herringbone brick (Blackheath Vale) to clay tiles (Blackheath Hill) to decorative
terracotta tiles (Quentin Road).

10.4 Boundary walls & gardens

Historic and traditional front boundary walls and garden walls make a very important
contribution to the character of the conservation area.

Boundary walls provide enclosure to the road, demarcation of public/private space, a
processional route to the house by defining the entrance and path, a human scale to
the street and a continuation of the frontage by visually tying together terraces of
houses. They often utilise the same brick type (or render/stucco) of the house, making
a further architectural link between front boundary wall and house.

The Heath in particular has some excellent examples of early boundary walls for
example Greyladies Gardens, Wat Tyler Road. Very early walls can be seen to the
tear of Dartmouth Row in Morden Lane. These are valuable survivals and should be
carefully maintained and preserved.

In addition to garden walls and boundary walls, some tailings are still in situ. (for
example Dartmouth Hill) Where these survive they make a very valuable contribution
to the character of the houses they front and can provide an important record of
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original details which could in the future be copied and reinstated on adjacent
properties. It should be noted that early and original boundary walls will also often
provide important clues as to the type, style and character of the railings which may
have sat atop them.

Of equal importance to the survival of boundary treatments is the retention of garden
spaces. This is particularly important where large villas and houses still retain the
spatial quality of their original Arcadian settings. These spaces are vital to retaining
the essential historic character of the ‘high status suburb’ that these early parts of the
suburbanisation of the conservation area enjoyed. They also provide an appropriately
scaled setting to large houses which were intended to be seen within a spacious
setting often offset by carefully considered planting; mature trees, hedges and shrubs.

10.5 Roofs & chimneys

Roofs and chimneys are particularly important elements of the built form particularly
on houses fronting the Heath. The architectural period and styles of building mean
that every effort was made to play down the actual roof coveting although in the case
of the villa the roof form is often accentuated through the use of deep eaves, often
bracketed and with cornices. However, there was always the emphasis on quality,
longevity and uniformity. In this respect, the natural Welsh slate is the most used
component material for traditional roofs in the conservation area. This is often seen
(and correctly so) with lead rolls to hips and dormer detailing.

Clay tiles are also seen and are a particularly strong part of the palette of materials
which forms the Arts and Crafts Domestic Revival style. As a consequence clay tiles
are seen on the more sweeping roofs of the Edwardian house and are also seen as
tile hanging in places. This has nothing to do with a Blackheath vernacular (although
relates to a Kent vernacular) but has everything to do with the Arts and Crafts
Movement. As such it forms a legitimate part of the character of some sub areas
within the conservation area and shares a commonality with the Movement throughout
the suburbs of London and way beyond.

Chimneys also play an important part in finishing the buildings of the conservation
area and are also a particularly strong part of the character of the Edwardian houses.
The Victorian terraces use them as strong transitional elements, sat on the party walls
of semi-detached houses and sometimes making strong statements in their own right
as part of an architectural composition. The best and contrasting examples of this are
Granville Park (with their tows of 16 chimney pots running front to back of the centre
of the mirrored plan) and ‘The Cottage’, Heath Lane with its excellent decorative,
Tudor Revival decorative chimney pots which bring this building to life and make a
real statement in terms of roofscape.
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Roofscape is a vital element of the character of the built form in Blackheath. The roof
form is very sensitive to change and can be easily upset with incorrect detailing or
specification of ridge tile, bonnet detailing, dormer detailing, guttering or hip joins.
Finials, decorative rooflines, cast iron guttering, hopper heads and downpipes all
make subtle but important contributions to the quality of a roof and the subsequent
character of the building and the conservation area as a whole.

10.6 Brickwork

The most common walling material in the conservation area is brick as there is no
local stone. Regionally, the Kentish Rag stone which is seen, for example at All Saints
Church, is not local and is very much the exception to what is otherwise brickwork or
stuccoed brick or painted brick.

The London stock brick is seen in various shades from strong yellows to greys and
teddy browns. The older the brickwork the darker and deeper the colour tends to be
with the smoke and smog or London playing its part in adding a patina of age to
brickwork which is impossible to recreate. In addition, traditional brickwork shows a
refinement to the joints and understanding of traditional materials which is also almost
impossible to recreate successfully today. This is particularly the case with regard to
rubbed and gauged brick arches which have very fine joints and tuck pointing, where
fine lines of lime imitate fine pointing.

Much brickwork has been spoilt or damaged by aggressive repointing in cement
mortars with heavy weather-struck joints which is sadly a common sight. Original tuck
pointing, early lime mortars and discreet pointing, even in patchy pieces, make a very
positive contribution to the character of the buildings in the conservation area.

10.7 Stucco

The use of stucco is particularly prevalent to the south of Belmont Hill rather than
around the Heath. It sits well with the grand style of the villa and is used with the
intention of giving the impression of a stone fronted building. This aspiration has been
eroded in places by paint finishes in brighter colours (the original finish would have
reflected a stone colour — shades of grey or cream). However, the overall intended
effect is still clear.
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10.8 Architectural detailing

Many of the buildings in the conservation area are all the more visually rewarding for
their use of ornament and detailing. Architraves, string courses, cornices, hood
mouldings, console brackets, pilasters, keystones, carved keystones, gauged
brickwork, arches all contribute to the strong individual character of buildings and
often the cohesiveness of pairs, groups or terraces. Where they have been used they
make a very strong contribution to the character of the individual house, pair, group or
terrace. Good examples can be found throughout the conservation area but are
perhaps best illustrated by Brigade Street, Dartmouth Row (group at north end),
Blackheath Hill and Dartmouth Hill. Good detailing can be seen on a grand scale in
Granville Park as well as in Quentin Road, Kingswood Place, Church Terrace, Lee
Terrace and Glenton Road.

10.9 Public realm

The conservation area has valuable survivals of elements of historic streetscape
throughout. There is a particularly important and meaningful survival in the Village —

cobbles (defining historic roads), granite setts (village entrance to the station car park)
and crossovers, central drains and gulleys to mews (Brigade Mews), bollards,
boundary stones, listed telephone boxes (particularly K2’s) all contribute to the
positive character of the conservation area. In places, historic floor treatments have
been very poorly repaired or covered over.
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11 Conclusion

It is perhaps the diversity of character and retention of the spatial qualities in the
conservation area which, in the London context, makes Blackheath such a valuable
and worthy area for protection.

This appraisal has emphasised the distinct character of parts of the conservation area
as well as the Heath, which has been the subject of further protection as part of the
buffer zone to the Greenwich World Heritage Site thus emphasising its value and
importance in the South East London townscape. But it has also highlighted the
distinction between areas north and south of the railway. These areas are not of
greater or lesser importance but are very different in terms of their character. The
appraisal provides comprehensive analysis of each character area which make up this
very large conservation area.

The conservation area is generally well preserved and there is a remarkably high
degree of retention of original fabric, even in buildings which do not enjoy the
protection of listing. However, there is significant pressure to remove boundary walls
to create parking areas which not only destroys historic fabric and the composition of
streets but removes valuable green spaces and original settings for the characteristic
grand villas of the area.

Another key area of sensitivity is the Village. The commercially driven development
pressures on this very tight plan of historic buildings are immense. Small incremental
changes such as poor signage, the inappropriate alteration or painting of shopfronts
or facades and the lack of care taken in the placing of street furniture, highway
signage and maintenance of traditional street surfaces could have a collectively
devastating effect on the character of this part of the conservation area.

As part of the review of Blackheath Conservation Area, a management plan has been
adopted and Article 4 directions made to prevent harmful small scale alterations to
residential houses in the conservation area. Details of these are available from the
planning information desk or www. lewisham.gov.uk.
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13 Supplementary Planning Document

Blackheath supplementary planning document

One of the qualities of Blackheath conservation area is the limited amount of well
designed and successfully integrated modern development. Where suitable sites
exist, this supplementary planning document provides advice on how good quality
small scale new development can continue to enhance the character of the
conservation area.

New buildings will only be considered on sites which can be developed without
damage to the traditional layout and pattern of development in the area, which is an
integral part of the area’s character, or to redevelop some of the buildings in the area
which currently make a negative contribution to the area’s character.

This guidance should be read in conjunction with the Council’s urban design policies,
guidance on design and access statements as well as the character appraisal. Pre
application advice can be given by the Conservation and Urban Design Team.

Appraisal of the surrounding built form
The setting of the site is critical to any new development and will vary in virtually every
case, but as a guide it should be taken as the area from which the site can be seen
and the surroundings seen from the site. The setting can also be defined as the
general pattern of uses in the vicinity. These may vary on each side of the site. The
character appraisal should be used for reference. The following elements should all
be analysed and their implications understood:

• Surrounding skylines, rooflines and landmarks. Will the development have an
impact on cherished views or “signature” skylines?

• What are the typical sizes and shapes of building plots: Are these uniform or varied
If varied, consider largest and smallest types?

• How do buildings relate to the back edge of the footpath or carriageway? This
factor alone can help to assimilate new buildings into the streetscene.

• Are the buildings in the street freestanding, or are they in small informal groups or
more regular terraces?

• Are buildings linked in a particular way, for example with boundary walls?
• Do the buildings generally have their main ridgeline parallel to the street or at right

angles?
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• Are the buildings generally “grand’ or modestly proportioned and styled

• Is there a typical or historic boundary treatment? Historic walls and hedging are an
integral part of the character of the area.

• What are the predominant materials and colour of material in the area and are any
unique?

Appraisal of the site
First consider the features and function of the possible site. Development will only be
considered if development would preserve or enhance the character of the
conservation area. Undeveloped sites may still have a function that it is desirable to
retain such as a garden or simply a green breathing space in the urban environment.

• What is the current character of the site?

• What trees are present What species are they and what size are they?

• Are there any features or buildings present?

• What is the current use of the site?

• What type of boundary is present?

• Where would the access to the new building be located?

Design solution
The design concept should be developed from the above information. This information
should be set out in a design and access statement which will underpin the evolving
design process and should be shown to the Council when seeking pre-application
advice. It is also a requirement of all planning applications for new development. The
design solution should be a building that sits well within its setting as well as
preserving and enhancing the character of Blackheath conservation area
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Appendix I: Designations Map
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